

PLANNING COMMISSION

December 21, 2021

OVERVIEW

1. Current Members and Terms

See attached list.

2. By-Laws

See attached Rules of Procedure.

3. Attendance Records; Dates of Meetings

See attached spreadsheet.

4. Expectations and Responsibilities of Board/Commission Members

All members shall be residents of the City, qualified by knowledge and experience to make decisions on questions of community growth and development; Members may be asked to fill seats on Boards/Commissions that are advisory to the Planning Commission, such as the Urban Design Committee and Public Art Commission

5. 2021 Projects

The Planning Commission heard numerous case in 2021, including 116 special use permits, 21 owner-initiated rezonings, 4 Community Unit Plans including the Creighton Court Community Unit Plan, the City Center Innovation District Small Area Plan, the Greater Scott's Addition (now called the "Diamond District") city-initiated rezoning, and the VCU/VUU, Allison Street and Science Museum Pulse Stations city-initiated rezoning.

6. Legislation and Policy Recommendations

The Planning Commission makes recommendations to the City Council for legislation pertaining to updates to the City Zoning Ordinance, special use permits, rezonings, community unit plans, conditional use permits, the City Master Plan, right-of-way/property acquisitions and conveyances, and certain budget-related items.

City Planning Commission Roster 2021

Member Name & Address	Criteria for Appointment/Succeeding	Term	Term Limit	Current Term-Commence	Current Term-Terminate	Live District	Work District
Elizabeth H. Greenfield 503 Tuckahoe Blvd. Richmond, VA 23226	Qualified Voter (succeeding Lynn McAteer)	2 nd Term	3 Terms	1/28/2019	1/28/2022	1 st	Henrico
Max Hepp-Buchanan 3607 Moss Side Ave. Richmond, VA 23222	Qualified Voter (succeeding Doug Cole)	2 nd Term	3 Terms	3/11/2019	3/10/2022	3 rd	2 nd
Melvin D. Law* 3505 Montrose Ave. Richmond, VA 23222	Vice Chair Mayoral Appointee (succeeding Sandra G. Smith)	5 th Term	None	12/15/2018	12/14/2021	3 rd	Retired
Vivek G. Murthy 4313 Monument Ave. Richmond, VA 23230	Qualified Voter (succeeding Amy L. Howard)	3 rd Term	3 Terms	4/24/2021	4/23/2024	1 st	Goochland
Burchell Pinnock** 4917 New Kent Rd. Richmond, VA 23225	Qualified Voter (succeeding David Johannas)	1 st Term	3 Terms	7/26/2021	7/23/2024	4 th	6 th
Rodney M. Poole, Esq. Poole & Poole 4901 Dickens Rd.- Suite 108 Richmond, VA 23230	Chair BZA Representative (succeeding Al Siff)	5 th Term	None (Coincides with BZA Term)	12/31/2019	12/31/2022	3 rd	Henrico
John "Jack" Thompson 4007 W Franklin St. Richmond, VA 23221	Qualified Voter (succeeding Jeffrey W. Sadler)	2 nd Term	3 Terms	7/22/2019	7/22/2022	1 st	1 st
Andreas Addison*** 900 E Broad St, Suite 305 Richmond, VA 23219	City Council Rep (succeeding Ellen Robertson)	1 st Term	Coincides with City Council Term	1/4/2021	12/31/2024	1 st	6 th
Lincoln Saunders 900 E Broad Street, Suite 201 Richmond, VA 23219	Chief Administrative Officer (succeeding Lenora Reid)	1 st Term	Coincides with CAO apt	12/7/2020		4 th	6 th

* Melvin Law's term expired on December 14, 2021, however he will continue to serve on the Commission until the vacancy for the mayor-appointed Commissioner is filled.

**Burchell Pinnock succeeded David Johannas on July 26, 2021. The last meeting for David Johannas was July 19, 2021, and the first meeting for Burchell Pinnock was August 2, 2021.

***Commissioner Ellen Robertson attended the January 4, 2021 meeting and the first meeting of Andreas Addison was February 1, 2021.

**RULES OF PROCEDURE
of the
CITY PLANNING COMMISSION**

City of Richmond, Virginia

The following rules of procedure are adopted by the City Planning Commission to facilitate the performance of its duties and the exercise of its powers as outlined in Chapter 17 of the City Charter as amended and general law.

SECTION 1

Composition As set forth in Section 17.02 of the Charter and any amendments thereto;

- (a) The City Planning Commission shall consist of nine members:
- i. One member shall be a member of the council who shall be appointed by the council for a term coincident with his/her term in the council;
 - ii. One member shall be a member of the board of zoning appeals appointed by the board of zoning appeals for a term coincident with his/her term on such board;
 - iii. One member shall be the chief administrative officer or an officer or employee of the city designated from time to time by him/her; and
 - iv. Six citizen members shall be qualified voters of the city who hold no office of profit under the city government, appointed for terms of three years, one of whom shall be appointed by the mayor, five of whom shall be appointed by the council. Vacancies shall be filled by the authority making the appointment, for the unexpired portion of the term.
- (b) All members shall be residents of the City, qualified by knowledge and experience to make decisions on questions of community growth and development; provided, that at least one-half of the members so appointed shall be owners of real property. (VA State Code §15.2-2212)

SECTION 2

Organization

- (a) **Election of Officers**
The Commission shall elect a [Chair and Vice-Chair at its first regular meeting in January (or at a subsequent meeting, the date of which is fixed by the Commission at the first regular meeting in January) for a term of one year and they shall assume office immediately. An officer shall serve until his successor is elected. The elected officers shall be eligible for reelection.
- (b) **Duties**
The Chair shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and perform such other duties as may be requested by the Commission.

The Vice-Chair shall act in the capacity of the Chair in his or her absence and in the event the office of the Chair becomes vacant, the Vice-Chair shall succeed to this office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a successor to the Vice-Chair for the unexpired term. In the absence of both the Chairman and the Vice-Chair, those members present shall select a temporary Chair.

SECTION 3

Meetings

(a) **Regular Meetings**

The Commission shall hold its regular meetings on the 1st and 3rd Mondays in each month. When the regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, or for some other special reason the scheduled date is an undesirable meeting date, the meeting shall be held on the following day unless otherwise directed by the Commission.

(b) **Special Meetings**

The Chair or two members of the Commission may call special meetings, upon written request to the Secretary. The Secretary shall mail to all members, at least five days in advance of a special meeting, a written notice fixing the time and place of the meeting and the purpose thereof.

Written notice of a special meeting is not required if the time of the special meeting has been fixed at a regular meeting, or if all members are present at the special meeting or file a written waiver of notice. (VA State Code §15.2-2214)

(c) **Order of Business**

The order of business of such regular or special meetings shall normally be as follows and in each case, general subjects shall include items continued from prior meetings.

1. Meeting called to order
2. Roll call
3. Approval of minutes of previous meetings
4. Chairman's Comments
5. Director/Secretary's Report
6. Requests to Defer Action, Recommendations to Continue or Strike
7. Consent Agenda
8. Council papers
9. Subdivision plats
10. Consideration of special staff reports and staff updates on upcoming projects
11. Communications not related to specific items on agenda
12. Matters raised by members
13. New Business/Upcoming Items
14. Adjournment

The Secretary, with the approval of the Chair, is authorized to prepare a consent agenda where approval is recommended on matters of a routine or non-controversial nature. The Secretary, with the approval of the Chair, may also prepare of list of items where, with the consent of the applicant, the Commission will be asked to delete the item from the agenda, defer action, or make a recommendation to continue or strike the item.

The purpose of the consent agenda is to provide a method for the expeditious handling of items which, in the opinion of the Secretary and the Chair, will not require discussion and the action recommended by the staff or requested by the applicant will be approved unanimously by the Commission. Any such consent agenda shall be determined no later than the close of business the Wednesday prior to the meeting, and items on such consent agenda shall plainly be noted on any Planning Commission agendas distributed to the public.

The deletion and deferral list, including any items with the recommendations to continue or strike, shall be considered prior to considering the consent agenda. Prior to the consideration of a motion to approve the consent agenda, the Chair shall ask any if member of the Commission would like to have an item removed from the consent agenda for clarification, discussion or in order that there may be a separate vote on that item. Following that, the Secretary shall read a general description of each item remaining on the consent agenda for the benefit of the Commission and the citizens attending the meeting. The Chair shall then provide the public an opportunity to speak on any public hearing items and on any other item which the Commission is willing to accept public comment through a single public hearing on the entire consent agenda. At the close of the public hearing, the Commission shall take a

single vote on the consent agenda, provided that the Commission may remove any item from the consent agenda prior to a vote for consideration under the regular order of business.

- (d) **Public**
All meetings, hearings and records shall be open to the public as prescribed by the Virginia Freedom of Information Act.

- (e) **Quorum**
Five members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the taking of official action. No action of the Commission shall be valid unless authorized by a majority vote of those present and voting. (VA State Code §15.2-2215)

Whenever a quorum is not present at any meeting, those present may adjourn the meeting to another day or hold the meeting for the purpose of considering such matters as are on the agenda.

No action taken at such a meeting shall be final or official unless and until the Commission ratifies and confirms it at a subsequent meeting at which a quorum is present.

Commission members appointed by City Council shall be removed from office by City Council without limitation in the event that the Commission member is absent from four consecutive meetings of the commission. Commission members appointed by City Council may be removed from office by City Council without limitation in the event that the Commission member is absent from any four meetings of the commission within any 12-month period. In either such event, a successor shall be appointed by the Council for the unexpired portion of the term of the member who has been removed. (VA State Code §15.2-2212 and City Code §2-837)

- (f) **Minutes**
The Commission shall keep minutes of its meetings and shall have them spread in suitable volumes. Said minutes shall be the official records of the activities of the Commission.

- (g) **Annual Report**
The Commission shall make an annual report to the City Council concerning its activities. (City Charter §17.09)

SECTION 4

Hearings

- (a) Public hearings shall be conducted by the Commission on all matters for which public hearings are required by general law, the City Charter or the City Code. Any citizen who wishes to speak on these matters may do so; however, the Commission may ask the speakers to adhere to a time limit of three minutes for an individual and five minutes for a spokesperson for a group.

In order that the public may be properly advised of the foregoing policy, the Secretary shall see that a statement reflecting the policy is included on the attendance forms available to the public at the Commission's meetings. In addition, the City Clerk shall be requested to include with the official City Council notice to property owners regarding rezonings and special use permits, a statement setting forth the policy, together with the time and place of the Commission's consideration of the matter, and a statement inviting interested parties to convey to the office of the Director of Planning and Development Review any information they feel is pertinent to the case. The Director or designated staff member shall summarize all information received in such manner by the Director's office, and communicate such information to the Commission in conjunction with the staff presentation on the matter.

- (b) In every case where a public hearing by the Commission is required by general law, the City Charter or the City Code, the Secretary of the Commission shall see that proper legal notice is given and that the hearing is scheduled sufficiently in advance to allow for such notice.

SECTION 5

Conflict of Interest

No member of the Commission shall participate in the vote on any ordinance, resolution, motion or vote in which he or she, or any person, firm or corporation for which he or she is attorney, officer, director, employee or agent has a conflict of interest as set forth in general law, the City Charter, or City Code.

SECTION 6

Matters Subject to Consideration by the Commission

(a) **Agenda Items**

In addition to the following, all matters requiring consideration by the Commission in accordance with general law and Chapter 17 of the Charter, and matters considered by the Commission to be appropriately related to the duties and responsibilities set forth in general law and Chapter 17 of the Charter shall be subject to review by the Commission:

1. Amendments of the Master Plan
2. Proposed amendments of the zoning ordinance and zoning maps
3. Applications for special use permits
4. Community Unit Plans
5. All matters referred to it by City Council
6. Subdivision plats
7. Reports and plans prepared at the request of the Commission
8. Review of the Capital Budget prepared by the Mayor in accordance with section 6.19 of the Charter
9. Building permits when the property is designated for acquisition by the City in the City's Master Plan and the cost of work is estimated to be above \$10,000
10. City projects subject to Location, Character, and Extent compliance with the Master Plan
11. Reports received from the Urban Design Committee

(b) **Reconsideration**

After formal action by the Commission, no matter shall be reconsidered by the Commission except upon a majority vote of those present at the meeting considering the reconsideration. Any motion for reconsideration must be made no later than the next following meeting and only by a member who voted with the prevailing side.

SECTION 7

Director

The Director of Planning and Development Review shall provide such staff services as the Commission may require in making and adopting a master plan or any revisions thereof; in preparing and revising a comprehensive zoning plan; in the consideration of subdivision plats; in reviewing the Capital Budget prepared by the Mayor, and in the performance of any other duties and functions assigned to the City Planning Commission by Chapter 17 of the Charter of the City of Richmond, general law, or by action of City Council.

The Director shall perform the following duties for the Commission:

- (a) Execute documents in the name of the Commission when in accordance with Commission action.

- (b) Shall take action or make recommendations in the name of the Commission in accordance with such plans, policies and procedures as are approved or established by the Commission from time to time; provided that when he or she recognizes a serious conflict of interest, public controversy, or uncertainty or doubt as to the plans, policies or procedures approved or established by the Commission, the Director shall present such matters to the Commission for consideration or reconsideration before taking final action.
- (c) Shall notify the applicant submitting a subdivision plat, special use permit, rezoning, conditional use permit, and/or Community Unit Plan application of recommendations of the staff to the Commission before its meeting so that the applicant may be represented at the hearing.
- (d) Shall provide, in conjunction with the staff reports on items before the Commission, both a detailed plan and a vicinity map where applicable, showing the relation of the item under consideration to the surrounding neighborhood.
- (e) Shall report all expressions received from interested citizens regarding any matters before the Commission.

SECTION 8

Secretary

The Commission shall appoint a Secretary who shall serve at the pleasure of the Commission. The duties of said Secretary shall be as follows:

- (a) Record the minutes of the Commission as provided in Section 3, Paragraph (f) hereof.
- (b) Prepare an agenda for all meetings in accordance with the order of business as provided in Section 3, Paragraph (c) hereof.
- (c) Notify the members of the Commission of all meetings in accordance with Section 3, Paragraph (a) and (b) hereof. In addition, he or she shall telephone each member on the day of the meeting to determine the attendance of said meeting.
- (d) He or she shall forward all recommendations of the Commission to the proper agency and shall mail copies of Council matters to each member of Council before the Council meeting at which the matter will be considered. He or she shall also send copies of Council letters to the petitioner and all City departments concerned.
- (e) Shall mark "approved" and sign the final subdivision plat when it is in accordance with the tentative plat approved by the Commission. In the absence of the Secretary, the duly designated Acting Secretary may sign in his or her stead.
- (f) Make reservations and travel arrangements for any Commission member wishing to attend conferences and seminars on planning matters.
- (g) Such other duties as the Commission or the Director may assign.

SECTION 9

Committees

- (a) In order to expedite the work of the Commission, Ad Hoc Committees may be appointed by the Chair to study special matters related to planning. Ad Hoc Committees may include nonmembers of the Commission, if desired by the Commission.
- (b) All matters coming before the Committees shall be studied and the Committees' recommendations made to the Commission at a regular or special meeting.

- (c) Reports from consultants or advisory agencies should be delivered to the appropriate Committee of the City Planning Commission, preferably at a Committee meeting called for the purpose in order that the Committee review may be available when the report is presented to the entire Commission.
- (d) Any of the Committees appointed as in (a) above or the Commission may, where appropriate, refer to the Urban Design Committee items for advice and consideration.

SECTION 10

Miscellaneous

- (a) Suspension or Amendment of Rules. The Commission may suspend or amend any of these rules by not less than five affirmative votes at any meeting.
- (b) Items to be submitted to the Commission must be in the office of the Commission not later than 5:00 P.M. eight business days before the date of the meeting.
- (c) **Robert's Rules of Order**
The rules of parliamentary procedure set forth in *Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised (10th Edition)*, shall govern the conduct of meetings of the Planning Commission, except where otherwise specified by these rules or otherwise mandated by the Charter of the City of Richmond, Virginia or general law. Any rules of parliamentary procedure may be suspended by five affirmative votes.

Attendance Record 2021

Planning Commission

P = Present

NAME		1/4/2021	2/1/2021	2/16/2021	3/1/2021	3/4/2021	3/15/2021	4/5/2021	4/19/2021	5/3/2021	5/17/2021	6/7/2021	6/21/2021	7/6/2021	7/19/2021	8/2/2021	8/16/2021	9/7/2021	9/20/2021	10/4/2021	10/18/2021	11/1/2021	11/15/2021	12/6/2021	12/20/2021	#	%
1	Elizabeth Greendfield	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	24	100.0%
2	Max Hepp-Buchanan	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P		P	P	P		P	P	P	P	P	22	91.7%
3	David Johannas; Burt Pinnock	P	P	P	P	P		P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	23	95.8%
4	Melvin Law	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	24	100.0%
5	Vivek Murthy	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P		P		P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	22	91.7%
6	Rodney Poole	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	24	100.0%
7	Lincoln Saunders	P	P	P	P	P			P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	22	91.7%
8	Ellen Robertson; Andreas Addison	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P		P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	23	95.8%
9	John Thompson	P	P	P	P		P	P	P	P	P		P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	P	22	91.7%
# in Attendance:		9	9	9	9	8	9	7	8	9	9	8	8	8	9	9	8	8	9	9	8	9	9	9	9		